
 
page 1 of 24 

CITY OF WEST LAFAYETTE 
COMMON COUNCIL 

PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 1, 2007 

 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of West Lafayette, Indiana, met in the Board of Works Room at 
City Hall on November 1, 2007, at the hour of 4:30 p.m. 
 
Mayor Mills called the meeting to order and presided. 
 
Present:   Griffin, Hunt, Keen, O’Callaghan, Satterly, and Truitt. 
 
Absent: McMullin. 
 
Also present were City Attorney Bauman, Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes, City Engineer Buck, Public 
Works Director Downey, and Fire Chief Drew. 
  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
Resolution No. 29-07 A Resolution Requesting The Transfer Of Funds (Clerk-Treasurer, City 
Hall, Police, Sanitation, Motor Vehicle Highway) (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Mayor Mills said is this already amended? 
 
Councilor Griffin said no. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I’m requesting an amendment. 
 
Mayor Mills said okay.  Does somebody want to—? 
 
Councilor Griffin said well, can we hear about it maybe a little bit? 
 
Mayor Mills said yes. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said the additions are marked? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said yes. 
 
Mayor Mills said the first is in the General Fund, Clerk-Treasurer’s Office, Legal Services, 
Contract Services, and Instruction, $5,200, to Insurance and Licenses, Permits & Fees; in City 
Hall, from Gas, $3,650, to Postage, $3,650; in Police, from Repair Parts and Equipment, 
Contract Services, Instruction, and Vehicle Lease/Purchase, for a subtotal of $34,000, to New 
Uniforms, Gasoline, Oil, Tires & Tubes, and Repair Services; in the Sanitation Department, from 
Postage and Vehicle Lease/Purchase, $10,300, to Certifications & Exams and Other 
Equipment; for a total in the General Fund of $53,150.  Then in Motor Vehicle Highway, from 
Travel, $400, to Institutional Supplies, $400.  Okay, are there questions? 
 
Councilor Keen said Madam Mayor. 
 
Mayor Mills said yes. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 2 of 24 

 

Councilor Keen said on the City Hall transfer, the additional postage is necessary, is that 
postage that was necessary for the open letter that you sent out? 
 
Mayor Mills said it was necessary for—yes, a Citywide mailing and the October newsletter. 
 
Councilor Keen said the Citywide mailing was the open letter that you sent?  Is that correct? 
 
Mayor Mills said I don’t know.  The Clerk-Treasurer wrote this up, so you’ll have to direct that 
question to her. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said yes, it was. 
 
Councilor Griffin said and the Repair Services in Police, the $13,000.  Do you know anything 
about those details? 
 
Mayor Mills said I don’t.  I mean, it’s not—I can’t answer that, Carl [Councilor Griffin], I’m sorry. 
 
Councilor Griffin said I move for amendment by substitution. 
 
Motion to amend Resolution No. 29-07 by substitution was seconded by Councilor O’Callaghan. 
 
The vote to amend Resolution No. 29-07 by substitution unanimously AYE. 
 
Mayor Mills said we will find out the answers to those questions for Monday. 
 
Councilor Griffin said I don’t need a whole lot of explanation for the Gasoline transfer, I suspect. 
 
Mayor Mills said no, the Chief will be here on Monday. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Resolution No. 30-07 A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor Of The City Of West Lafayette To 
Enter Into An Interlocal Agreement With The City Of Lafayette, City Of West Lafayette, County 
Of Tippecanoe County And The Area Plan Commission Of Tippecanoe County (Submitted by 
the Area Plan Commission) 
 
Mayor Mills said this was submitted by Sallie Fahey from the Area Plan Commission.  It 
establishes an agreement to help pay for traffic counters.  So, as an NPO, we are going to buy 
some traffic counters and all share in the cost of that, and our share would be $323.90.  So it 
will be 80% federal dollars and 20% local dollars, and that’s our share, $323.90. 
 
Councilor Satterly said I see they’re buying round Chinese fingers. 
 
Mayor Mills said don’t ask me about those details, Gil [Councilor Satterly].  You know more 
about those than I would. 
 
Councilor Hunt said Tippecanoe County is buying those.  Those are the automatic people 
counts.  It took me a long time to figure out where the 20% was of $323.90. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and where will we use the counters in general?  Just all around? 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 3 of 24 

 

 
City Engineer Buck said sidewalks and trails. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said sidewalks and trails. 
 
City Engineer Buck said campus areas, wherever.  All over. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and when these are people counters, when Ann [Councilor Hunt] 
did the Parks report last month, she mentioned in the Art on the Wabash that they did clickers, 
the Parks Department did clickers.  Would these be anything related to that, replace that? 
 
City Engineer Buck said no.  They can’t replace that. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said okay. 
 
City Engineer Buck said but these are infrared sensors, big enough—a deer walks by, it will 
probably count that, too. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and you can set to— 
 
City Engineer Buck said you could mount it to a pole or a fencepost or something like that, a 
utility pole. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and so part of what you could use it— 
 
City Engineer Buck said it’s very portable, runs on batteries, and has a distance that you can 
project out, and you can adjust that and test your settings, to make sure you’re going to get the 
types of counts you want. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and people walking three or four abreast, they can count all of 
them? 
 
City Engineer Buck said I’d have to look into that, to know exactly how that technology would 
account for that. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said thank you. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Resolution No. 31-07 A Resolution To Require Monthly Bills To Be Filed For Legal Services 
(Submitted by Sam Haynes) 
 
Mayor Mills said this is submitted by Mr. Haynes. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said do you want to say anything it, Sam [Mr. Haynes]?  Do you want to 
say anything about your resolution? 
 
Mr. Sam Haynes [713 Avondale] said I think it’s necessary that we have all the bills submitted 
on a timely basis, so that we can foresee or even know what our costs are being incurred.  I 
really didn’t like the timing of this late filing for fees.  I had—probably not so—but I have a 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 4 of 24 

 

feeling it has something to do with the election.  I’d be glad to be corrected on that.  but I did 
stop in at the Courthouse the other day and sit in on a trial.  There were about three lawyers 
involved in prosecuting a case.  I know this is going to be somewhat expensive, and I don’t why 
we can’t be kept abreast of how many hours are put in.  And the other thing is, our lawyer has 
not submitted a bill for his services since May, and that seems like a long time.  I think we ought 
to be brought up to date. 
 
Mayor Mills said I can respond to some of that, Mr. Haynes. 
 
Mr. Haynes said good. 
 
Mayor Mills said we have gotten bills from our legal firm since May, not necessarily in code 
enforcement, but in all the other areas, if they work for the City, we get monthly bills.  And we 
have been receiving those, we’ve been paying those.  Code enforcement, there are a stack of 
bills that are on Mr. [Assistant Director of Development] Grady’s desk.  As is the policy, Mr. 
Grady has to go through every sheet and check each of those submissions.  That’s what I do 
when I get my monthly legal bill.  I go through and make sure that all the times that are recorded 
are appropriate, and he does the same thing before he signs every bill to be paid.  And he told 
me last week it’s his responsibility that they haven’t been passed along.  Until he signs off on 
them, then the code enforcement department is going to have to come and appropriate more 
money, because we’re not going to have enough in there.  We already know that.  But he wants 
to go through each bill first, and he said it’s partially his fault, because he’s been in court and 
he’s been working on pulling all the information together for these cases that we’re trying.  And 
we’re in the middle of three of them right now, so I’m not saying there’s not a reason to have a 
monthly bill, but there are extenuating circumstances of why they’ve backed up.  And it does not 
have anything to do with the election.  It has to do with the trials that are ongoing right now.   
 
Mr. Haynes said is that Mr. Grady, is he the man that rides around and looks for, tries to— 
 
Mayor Mills said no. 
 
Mr. Haynes said who is Mr. Grady? 
 
Mayor Mills said Mr. Grady is head of the code enforcement program, the Assistant 
Development Director. 
 
Mr. Haynes said okay. 
 
Mayor Mills said and so his responsibility is the whole code enforcement program, and he’s the 
one who Mr. Cunningham [Nuisance and Housing Inspector], who I think you’re talking about— 
 
Mr. Haynes said correct. 
 
Mayor Mills said Mr. Cunningham [Nuisance and Housing Inspector] works with Mr. Grady 
[Assistant Director of Development] in enforcing the nuisance part of the code enforcement 
program.  But Mr. Grady is in charge of all the rental inspection program, and he is the one who 
actually files the paperwork for a lawsuit with Mr. [City Attorney] Bauman’s office when things 
have not been complied with.  It’s Mr. Grady who makes the process start for a legal suit to go 
forward. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 5 of 24 

 

Mr. Haynes said well, that doesn’t seem like a very satisfactory situation.  Does he need help to 
file the bills?  I mean, that’s a long while, since May. 
 
Mayor Mills said it is a long time— 
 
Mr. Haynes said and it normally isn’t’ that long, except these happened to come in October— 
 
Mayor Mills said but, Mr. Haynes, we’ve never been involved in this many serious lawsuits at 
one time.  Have we ever had this many serious lawsuits going at one time? 
 
City Attorney Bauman said well, I don’t know that serious is the way I would characterize it, as 
much as we have three completely intransigent defendants at one time. 
 
Mayor Mills said so, I mean, it’s not typical for the legal things to drag on for this length of time.  
And, yes, it would be nice to have somebody out there, Mr. Haynes, but we’re trying to hold your 
tax dollars to a minimum, and so we don’t have another person in the code enforcement 
program that does the same job Mr. Grady does. 
 
Mr. Haynes said well, now, my taxes already went up $200 this last year— 
 
Mayor Mills said but not because of us, sir.  Because the loss of inventory pushed property tax 
costs onto the homeowner.  Our tax rate didn’t go up.   
 
Mr. Haynes said but still I don’t understand the delay.  If Mr. Grady can’t get things done, he’s 
not getting his job done. 
 
Mayor Mills said he is doing some important parts of his job, and that is making the information 
available for the legal cases.  And he assured me that he will check those all in the next week 
and pass those on.  But, again, we’re going to have to appropriate more money. 
 
Councilor Truitt said what’s our total right now?  I mean, you would know that, because you’ve 
submitted all the bills. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said I’ve submitted them, but I don’t remember them. 
 
Councilor Truitt said but you would check that tomorrow, right? 
 
City Attorney Bauman said yes. 
 
Councilor Truitt said I mean, if they’re sitting out there, they’re obviously aged— 
 
City Attorney Bauman said yes. 
 
Councilor Truitt said and they’re sitting in your A/R, for sure. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said yes. 
 
Councilor Truitt said so maybe that might be helpful.  I don’t know.  It would be helpful for me. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said yes.  



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 6 of 24 

 

 
Councilor Truitt said but it doesn’t fix the problem. 
 
Mr. Haynes said it’ll soon be into November, then I suspect we’ll see a lot of bills come through 
a little later on. 
 
Mayor Mills said well, hopefully our cases will be resolved, Mr. Haynes, and we can catch up.  
And, again, it’s a lot of court time, it’s a lot of deposition time that they’re spending, taking these 
lawsuits forward. 
 
Mr. Haynes said but, again, it’s been since May, and that’s not satisfactory to me, although I’m 
only a citizen.   
 
Mayor Mills said well, you’re an important citizen, Mr. Haynes.   
 
Mr. Haynes said well, I try to get involved.  Okay, thank you very much. 
 
Mayor Mills said thank you. 
 
Councilor Keen said Madam Mayor, can you just walk us through the process of—or maybe Mr. 
[City Attorney] Bauman can help with this—the process of when a bill is received from Mr. 
Bauman’s office.  Where it goes, how it’s handled, whose hands it goes through before it 
actually gets paid. 
 
Mayor Mills said it goes to every department, whoever is paying for the legal services, that bill 
goes to them, the department head or whoever, you know, is in charge, code enforcement goes 
to [Assistant Director of Development] Allen Grady.  He gets copies of all the charges—the day, 
who provided the service, the number of minutes that were spent on it, and a very short but 
thorough explanation of what the cost was for.  So, you know, phone call on da-da-da-da. 
 
Councilor Keen said so it’s my understanding is that, when Mr. Bauman’s office has an invoice 
that he has ready for work that he’s doing, we do receive invoices within a 30-day period from 
the time that the work is completed? 
 
Mayor Mills said I can’t answer that, but I know I sign— 
 
City Attorney Bauman said during part of this time period, there wasn’t money in the account, 
and when I sent bills previously when they’re out of money, they’ve just been sent back, so I did 
wait until the transfer so there was money in the account, and then I sent it to Mr. Grady. 
 
Mayor Mills said so if Mr. Bauman sends a bill to, say, code enforcement and they spend out 
everything that was appropriated, the Clerk-Treasurer doesn’t hold that bill until money’s 
appropriated.  She sends it back.  And so then Mr. Bauman has to resubmit it. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I need to explain.  The bill is signed off in the department, then 
sent to my office.  If, at that time, we know there’s not sufficient appropriation and the 
department did not realize that, we’re obligated to return the bill with an explanation of why it 
cannot be paid in full.  So whether a department holds bills before sending them to our office, I 
wouldn’t be aware.  We do, of course, note the service dates and the invoice date, compared to 
the date of filing of the bill.  Those are at the discretion of the vendor and the department. 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 7 of 24 

 

 
Councilor Keen said well I guess I don’t see any real good reason for not passing this 
resolution, requiring the City Attorney to file invoices within that 30-day period, as opposed to 
holding them for that 30-day period of time.   I mean, that just in my mind doesn’t make logical 
sense, but— 
 
Mayor Mills said well, and I’m not disagreeing with that.  I’ll just say that there are other people 
that we do business with in the City who don’t file within a 30-day period of the work being done.  
And we pay those when they come in. 
 
Councilor Griffin said what would be some examples of that? 
 
Mayor Mills said well, I think there are probably things in every department that don’t get 
submitted within 30 days.  Am I not correct about that?  You know, work was done and they 
submit a bill and— 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I would say typically professional services are billed pretty 
regularly.  That’s just based on— 
 
Councilor Truitt said meaning what—the same day? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said monthly.  I think you see that coming through on the SRF with the 
engineering services.  You see that coming through on public works projects, with public works, 
engineering consultant, management kinds of billings, legal billings—at least from other people 
who provide legal services to the City—are normally submitted within a 30-day period. 
 
Councilor Keen said [unintelligible]. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said yes, they are.  Mr. Downey is indicating he doesn’t believe so, but 
I think looking back at the flow of payments through the SRF, you’ll see very regular payments.  
However, that is a matter for the vendor.  They don’t obviously get paid if they don’t submit a 
bill.  But I’m not aware of any bills that would be routinely held for six months or more.  At least 
we haven’t noticed that being very typical, when we audit invoice dates and claim dates.   
 
Mayor Mills said and, again, I’m saying that Mr. Bauman isn’t holding those for six month.  
Some are sitting on Mr. Grady’s desk, and sometimes he hasn’t submitted them because he 
knows there isn’t money in the account.  And there’s not much point in forwarding a bill when 
the department’s appropriated balance is zero, because he knows it’s going to be— 
 
Councilor Keen said well, but it kind of supports what Mr. Haynes is talking about, because if 
Mr. Bauman is holding his bill because, you know, we don’t have the money, we still don’t know 
what our liability, because we’ve not received an invoice.  And I think that Mr. Haynes’ point is 
that that I think it would be good to know what our liabilities are.  And so we should have the 
invoices as soon as possible.  I mean, to me it makes good business sense to submit an invoice 
on a timely basis. 
 
Mayor Mills said well, I always know what our liabilities are, in general terms. 
 
Councilor Griffin said I think that’s an important point. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 8 of 24 

 

Mayor Mills said and what the costs are for code enforcement. 
 
Mr. Haynes said pardon me.  What did you say? 
 
Councilor Griffin said I said I think that’s an important point— 
 
Mr. Haynes said oh, I thought you said “not important.” 
 
Councilor Griffin said no, I think that’s an important point. 
 
Mr. Haynes said I understood it different.  Sorry. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said but we accept it.  I do have some suggestions for this resolution.  
First of all, since the beginning talks about code enforcement, I think that this is really 
appropriate to add some language about code enforcement to this resolution.  And I have a 
suggestion for some code enforcement language that I would like to have added to this 
resolution.  I do have them typed up.  I didn’t make multiple copies.  Typically, when we make 
amendments to resolutions, we write them onto the resolution, but we can make copies of the 
written ones, if you’d like.  That would be fine.  While Gail [Thayer-Copeland, Clerk-Treasurer’s 
administrative assistant] is making those copies of the code enforcement language, I’d also like 
to—and I’d just as soon take all of these together—I’d like to strike that second Whereas, as I 
don’t think it’s appropriate to have in the resolution, and it certainly is a matter of interpretation 
whether it was inaccurate information or not.  I’d like to strike that.  I’d also like to, in the fourth 
Whereas, the point that was just made, that the Mayor does know what the magnitude of our 
legal costs, and certainly she is an elected official.  I would like to say, “Whereas elected 
officials and the public should have knowledge”—and I certainly agree that elected officials, 
particularly the Mayor–“should have knowledge of the magnitude of the legal costs that are 
being incurred.”  And so I would just like to change that Whereas to “Whereas, elected officials 
and the public should have knowledge of the magnitude of the legal costs that are being 
incurred.” 
 
Councilor Griffin said and that it goes on in this case, and there is no— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said “meaningful accountability for the—″  Again, I don’t think it would 
want to relate specifically to a case, so I would just end that there.   
 
Mayor Mills said end it where? 
 
Councilor Griffin said where will it end? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said after “being incurred.”  So, “Whereas, elected officials and the public 
should have knowledge of the magnitude of the legal costs that are being incurred.”  And just 
leave it there. 
 
Councilor Satterly said and take this out? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and take out that, “in this case and there is no meaningful 
accountability for the potential obligation of public funds in this matter.”  Again, not relating it to a 
[unintelligible].  So those are the changes I would like in the resolution as submitted, and then I 
have the— 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 9 of 24 

 

 
Councilor Satterly said the second Whereas, you’d wholesale take out? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said I’m proposing to strike that.  I think it’s irrelevant and I don’t think it’s 
necessarily true, and, again, it’s more specific than we would want in the resolution. 
 
Mayor Mills said okay, I don’t completely understand.  The stuff you handed out is different from 
what you’ve just read.  Is that—? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said no, what I’ve read out was just the few changes that I would like in 
the resolution as presented.   
 
Mayor Mills said then what is the stuff on the handout? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said the stuff in the handout are things that I would like to add in the 
beginning of the resolution— 
 
Mayor Mills said all right. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said it does refer to code enforcement, and I think it is—code 
enforcement is important and I’d like us to state that.  So they say, “WHEREAS the Common 
Council has adopted policy and procedures to enforce the BOCA,” which is the housing code, 
“and occupancy limitation through rental certificates, which is now in Chapter 117 of the City 
Code; and WHEREAS, it is a priority to enforce the housing code for the health and safety of the 
occupants; and WHEREAS, it is a priority for our neighborhoods to enforce occupancy 
restrictions to stop encouraging additional conversions of single-family homes to rentals, which 
can destroy our neighborhoods’ character; and WHEREAS, the bills for legal services incurred 
in one code enforcement case…”  So just those three Whereases to add in the beginning of the 
resolution. 
 
Councilor Hunt said so the first one on the resolution as we got it stays the same, is that right? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said yes, but it would be the fourth Whereas. 
 
Councilor Hunt said oh, that’s where it starts? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said right. 
 
Councilor Hunt said oh, okay. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said I guess it doesn’t matter to me which way it goes, but I just— 
 
Councilor Satterly said you still have the third Whereas as it’s indicated here? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said on the original resolution, yes.  It’s just this resolution refers to code 
enforcement and I think it’s very appropriate to include the importance of code enforcement in 
this resolution. 
 
Councilor Truitt said I’m not in favor of diluting it to that degree, me personally.  I think that there 
are situations that do relate to code enforcement.  But I’m more interested in the overall policy 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 10 of 24 

 

and procedure from a fiscal perspective, and I think that I was even contemplating maybe not 
just focusing on the legal services side.  I mean, if it’s a good fiduciary practice and it would 
benefit us to have bills submitted in a timely fashion, if it exists, a problem in regard to bills not 
coming in within a 30-day period of time, then it might make sense to make it more all-
encompassing, instead of just legal bills.  I don’t want to change this. 
 
Councilor Keen said I agree.  I think that would change the focus of what the intent Mr. Haynes 
is trying to accomplish, and I do agree, as far as maybe we should make this more 
encompassing and make it not just for legal services, but for any professional services that are 
rendered to the City. 
 
Councilor Truitt said if there is a problem and a benefit, and maybe, Judy [Clerk-Treasurer 
Rhodes], you can answer that, I don’t know if there is a problem to plan, the Mayor has said that 
she knows where she stands in regard to encumbered or incurred expenses.  But maybe 
everyone else does not understand where we stand.  So I don’t know if it would make any 
sense to make it a policy for other services besides just legal, as Gerry [Councilor Keen] said.  
Does it make sense to make it for all professional services within a 30-day period of time, in 
order to help the City plan?  I mean, would that be a benefit? 
 
Mayor Mills said I think you’re making it more restrictive than it needs to be. 
 
Councilor Truitt said more restrictive, meaning what? 
 
Mayor Mills said well, I mean— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said making the business that people do with the City, and— 
 
Mayor Mills said saying the business people, yes, requiring the business people to all submit 
within 30 days, I think is— 
 
City Engineer Buck said sometimes we don’t have anything go on for 30 days in a professional 
services agreement. 
 
Councilor Keen said within 30 days of the completion of whatever it is they’re working on.   
 
[overtalking] 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said I don’t want to tie up the hands of our vendors. 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Councilor Truitt said how in the world are you tying the hands of your vendors?  I mean— 
 
City Engineer Buck said when you’re into a contract that has a total amount from the get-go, 
and then billings are received incrementally, whether it’s monthly, quarterly, every two months, 
regularly— 
 
Councilor Keen said but if that’s set up by the contract, then it would follow the contract. 
 
City Engineer Buck said yes. 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 11 of 24 

 

 
Councilor Keen said but we’re talking about— 
 
City Engineer Buck said but engineering and professional services, I’m struggling to come up 
with one that’s not on a month contract like that.  Maybe something we do here at City Hall, and 
that’s much more minor. 
 
Councilor Truitt said yes, but in the real world, a 30-day billing is standard.  What Patti 
[Councilor O’Callaghan] was saying is that we would tie the hands of our contractors.  If we 
have a contract, that document dictates the terms of billing and payment. 
 
Councilor Griffin said I would hope so.  If what we’re saying is that what the business community 
is, in general, accustomed to dealing with and we do make a plan budgetarily, that this is a 
contract, we know how much the whole job is going to cost, it’s going to be paid on a quarterly 
basis, so if—but no, wait, it can’t be paid on a quarterly basis, because we have a resolution 
that says that the bills have to be submitted on a monthly basis. 
 
Councilor Truitt said for services rendered.  Yes, absolutely.  I mean, if services are rendered, 
they need to be current with their billing.  I mean, terrible business practices.  Shame on those 
vendors that don’t send their bills and can hold them for that long.   
 
City Engineer Buck said for services rendered. 
 
Councilor Truitt said for services rendered.  I’m not saying send a bill for nothing, but if you’ve 
incurred— 
 
City Engineer Buck said we have quarterly maintenance on the building.   
 
Councilor Truitt said yes. 
 
City Engineer Buck said and two months go by.  The third month comes up, they do something 
and they send us a bill.  That’s what you’re saying. 
 
Councilor Truitt said yes, that’s exactly right.  For services rendered. 
 
Councilor Hunt said I’m about to have my house painted, and my contract is you pay part at the 
beginning and the rest when they’re done. 
 
Councilor Truitt said absolutely.  They’re going to give you an invoice when they leave your 
house. 
 
Councilor Hunt said yes, that’s right. 
 
Councilor Truitt said that’s within 30 days. 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the distinction between something for which you know the total 
amount, you have a contract not to exceed, or at least some idea if that’s going to be changed 
they have to ask for a change orders or supplemental agreements.  Compared to billing which is 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 12 of 24 

 

utilization driven.  There is no contractual agreement.  The presence of the appropriation is not 
determining the amount of service that is going to be utilized.  Perhaps that’s part of the reason 
for this discussion here is that they are very different circumstances. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and so, I’ve thought about this for the services for legal, and I’m 
willing to go along with this, with the additions that I’ve proposed, I’m willing to go along with 
this.  But for other services, I haven’t thought about it, and I’m not interesting in expanding it at 
this point without having thought about it.  For me personally, I’m willing to approve this 
resolution with the changes that I have proposed, but not with those— 
 
Councilor Griffin said you’re moving those—? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said yes, I will move that we amend Resolution No. 31-07— 
 
Councilor Keen said before you make your motion, can— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said well, we usually make a motion and then discuss. 
 
Councilor Keen said well, I want it to be before you make your motion, because I would really 
like to have some time to digest what you’ve written here, and to think about what you’ve written 
before I would vote on whether or not to vote AYE.  I may very well accept the idea of doing this, 
but having just gotten it in front of me, there’s a lot here, and I really would like some time.  And 
I was hoping you’d wait for Monday for your— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said to amend by substitution on Monday? 
 
Councilor Keen said well, to make your proposal here, because I’d really like to read through 
this and see, to think about the implications.  Because you may have a good point here, you 
may not.  I haven’t had time really to digest it here.  The same with, you know, your thought as 
far as including professional issues. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said I don’t care about doing Monday night or tonight. 
 
Councilor Keen said I mean, do it however you like.  I’m just saying if you ask for a vote now, I’d 
vote against it.  Monday I may actually vote in favor of it, if I have time to think about it and what 
the implications of it would be.  So, you know, do whatever you want.  But, I mean, that was my 
thought on the matter. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said I just thought it would be easier to get it done today.  This is when 
we typically have amended resolutions, and then on Monday night, you can vote for the 
resolution as amended or not vote for the resolution as amended. 
 
Councilor Griffin said or amend it.   
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said or amend it. 
 
Councilor Griffin said Patti [Councilor O'Callaghan], are you going to—  Is your motion made? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said yes. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 13 of 24 

 

Councilor Griffin said I second the motion. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said I move that we amend by substitution as outlined. 
 
Councilor Griffin said second. 
 
Mayor Mills said okay.  So on the table is a motion to amend by substitution Resolution No. 31-
07, to include the language that Patti [Councilor O’Callaghan] has given us.   
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I must say I’m very confused about the order of items in here, from 
the Whereases to the Sections.  It would be very helpful if you could number the items here, so 
that, in the end, we can understand what’s being proposed.  Particularly where you’re proposing 
amendments on the Whereases and the Section.  I’m confused about what your intent is. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said okay.  I could just put 1-2-3 on the ones that I’ve proposed, and 
then 4, 5, 6— 
 
Mayor Mills said wait, on the sheet that you brought, you’re putting 1, 2, and 3 on the top 
Whereases? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said yes. 
 
Mayor Mills said and then—? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and then “Whereas the bills for legal services—“ 
 
Mayor Mills said that would be 4? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said 4.  “Whereas the City Attorney has not submitted bills…” would be 
5.  “Whereas elected officials and the public should have knowledge of the magnitude of the 
legal costs that are being incurred…” would be 6.  And the same thing with the Sections.  I 
have— 
 
Councilor Hunt said what’s with the Sections? 
 
Councilor Griffin said the ones that Mr. Haynes submitted would become 4, Sections would 
become 4 and 5? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said exactly. 
 
Councilor Hunt said and 6 [the sixth Whereas] is a bit evident. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said 6 is a bit evident.  Just, “Whereas elected officials and the public 
should have knowledge of the magnitude of the legal costs that are being incurred.” 
 
Councilor Hunt said and then the Sections are different? 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said the Sections 1, 2, 3, as handed out, then Section 4, Section 5. 
 
Councilor Hunt said okay, so these steps are unchanged. 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 14 of 24 

 

 
Councilor Griffin said Randy [Councilor Truitt], let me just throw out here, if I may. 
 
Councilor Truitt said yes. 
 
Councilor Griffin said the Whereases here.  I think that if in Section 4 we were to generalize this 
to say that all services provided to the City are to be billed on a monthly basis.  That may not be 
the precise wording, but that was certainly the intent that you were thinking of accomplishing.  I 
think that it tends to make, maybe not moot, but the Whereases, at least the ones that Mr. 
Haynes had submitted, pertain particularly to the City Attorney, and I think then that in the 
resolution phase, I’m not sure that there’s flow there, that there’s continuity there.  But if you 
generalize Section 4, it may make it so that the Whereases—we might want to say, “Whereas, 
we feel that all services in general should be billed…” 
 
Councilor Truitt said and I guess where I was coming is how we went from the resolution that 
was filed to now one that has all this other language that is related to the rental side of things. 
 
Councilor Keen said and is substantially different from the one that we started with. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said it has almost every single thing that was submitted.  It doesn’t 
change the original very much.  It does take out one of the Whereases.  It doesn’t change any of 
his language. 
 
Councilor Griffin said it doesn’t change the resolution. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said it doesn’t change the resolution and this talks about code 
enforcement— 
 
Councilor Truitt said right, and that’s why— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said so I think it’s appropriate to talk about code enforcement. 
 
Councilor Truitt said right, and that’s when I moved more to a general outlook on this resolution, 
being something more comprehensive and not make it so code specific. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said right. 
 
Councilor Truitt said and, quite frankly, not make it so legal. 
 
Councilor Satterly said it would change the whole document. 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Councilor Truitt said it would change— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said exactly.  It would change— 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said which is more than— 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 15 of 24 

 

 
Councilor Truitt said this is a pretty big change, through, also.  We changed the whole resolution 
here. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said your proposal would change these words a whole bunch more.  I 
did not mess with these words very much at all, the words that were submitted. 
 
Councilor Keen said but your sense of talking about code enforcement and the sense that he’s 
talking about code enforcement here are two of the things in that.  He’s just talking about an 
invoice that was received for code enforcement.  It has nothing to do with the actual code 
enforcement itself.  What you’re perceiving here is actual dealing with the code enforcement.  
And that changes the focus and the intent of the originally-filed resolution. 
 
Mayor Mills said except that the regular legal bills are filed on a regular basis.  It’s only the code 
enforcement bills, Gerry [Councilor Keen] that we’re talking about.  The rest of the legal bills 
have been filed on a timely basis.   
 
Councilor Truitt said if there’s money there. 
 
Mayor Mills said well, there is money there. 
 
Councilor Truitt said if there is money there. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said I feel like I’m messing with Mr. Haynes’ words less than your 
proposal would.  It retains most of the words in the original resolution. 
 
Mayor Mills said all right.  Further discussion on this motion to amend? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Mayor Mills said all in favor of the motion to amend the resolution to include this new 
language— 
 
Councilor Keen said I think we’re going to need a roll call vote on this.  That’s my suggestion. 
 
Mayor Mills said all right.  All in favor, we’ll do it by roll call, but those in favor of— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said amending by substitution— 
 
Mayor Mills said amending by substitution the changes that Councilor O’Callaghan submitted.  
Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes] would you call the roll, please. 
 
The roll call vote: 

AYE NAY 
Griffin Keen 
Hunt Truitt 
O’Callaghan  
Satterly  

 
The motion to amend Resolution No. 31-07 by substitution passed, 4-2. 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 16 of 24 

 

 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said may I just make one comment?   
 
Mayor Mills said sure. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said it was not germane to your decision, but I heard it several times 
recently, and I wanted to correct a misunderstanding about the increase in property tax resulting 
from the inventory deduct.  If you are a homeowner and I know you to be, with a Homestead 
deduction, your property taxes were not increased by the removal of inventory, because you 
receive a Homestead Credit that totally neutralized the impact of the tax increase. 
 
Mr. Haynes said thank you.  I didn’t know that. 
 
Mayor Mills said all right.  Anything else today? 
 
There was no further discussion on this topic. 
 
OTHER ITEMS: 
►Councilor Truitt said I have a couple items, more from an update standpoint.  Dave [City 
Engineer Buck], could you talk about the status of a roundabout discussion of some sort, 
Salisbury and Lindberg and the school board and some activity.  I got some phone calls, and I 
had no idea what people were talking about, so I couldn’t— 
 
City Engineer Buck said probably back in the spring and through June, we had several 
discussions at Traffic Commission about the Salisbury Street Safety Improvements Phase II 
Project, the scope of that and sort of the preliminary engineering of that.  One of the things we 
discussed was the potential for a roundabout at Salisbury and Lindberg.  We took comments on 
it, kind of got a lukewarm feel for it. 
 
Councilor Truitt said was the school board there at that meeting? 
 
City Engineer Buck said at the Traffic Commission, yes, the school was represented.   
 
Councilor Truitt said okay. 
 
City Engineer Buck said I believe.  I’d have to go back and check the minutes to make sure that 
they were at that particular meeting.   
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said it was Ken Barnes from the school— 
 
Mayor Mills said we have a member— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said is appointed. 
 
Councilor Satterly said it used to be the financial— 
 
Councilor Truitt said yes, Ken [Barnes, former WL School Corporation Business Manager]— 
 
Councilor Satterly said he hardly ever— 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 17 of 24 

 

Councilor Truitt said I’m not saying he wasn’t there.  I’m just trying to— 
 
[overtalking] 
 
City Engineer Buck said we had preliminary and first discussions. 
 
Councilor Truitt said right. 
 
City Engineer Buck said throwing the idea out—is this an option?  Is this something we should 
look at farther?  If we looked at it farther, would it fit, basically, what we wanted to do?  We 
determined that yes, it would, but is it better than a signal or not?  Is it safer for pedestrians or 
not?  There’s a lot of question marks that remain out there, until the school knows what’s going 
to happen with Burtsfield, if they’re going to sell it, if they’re going to reuse it, what’s going to 
happen?  At that point, it was, you know, determined that we would just leave it as it was, and 
go forward and basically rebuild what’s there now.   
 
Councilor Truitt said okay. 
 
City Engineer Buck said so the school was contacted by the appraiser most recently with a letter 
and went ahead and met with the appraiser, I believe, a couple weeks ago, a week and a half 
ago, and then contacted us, a little bit surprised that they were being contacted by an appraiser.  
And the reason they are being contacted by an appraiser is because the parcel of land of 
several parcels that they own there for the Burtsfield site they actually own to the center line of 
the road.  It’s not part of a subdivision that was a more modern plat that dedicates right-of-way, 
it was an actual original parcel of ground, and right-of-way had never been dedicated or deeded 
to the City.  We’re cleaning that up as a part of this process, so that we actually own basically to 
the back of the sidewalk where it sits today, and it’s not a liability for them and it’s something 
that we have the authority then to snowplow and, you know, maintain. 
 
Councilor Truitt said did that surprise—when you used that word—did that exist because of a 
communication problem between representative of the school board that was at these meetings 
didn’t communicate.  Because you used the word “surprise,” and that’s the word that was used 
when I had communication, and so it matches up there, and I’m just trying to figure out what— 
 
City Engineer Buck said I don’t know.  I guess if there was a—I mean, we sent them a letter, 
encouraging them to be involved as a property owner, and that was unfortunately during this 
transition period, I believe, of the superintendent— 
 
Councilor Truitt said okay. 
 
City Engineer Buck said and that communication appears to have been lost.  But we did have a 
property owner meeting, where all the property owners, whether they’re being impacted by right-
of-way cleanup-type issues like this or not—just where we have right-of-way today—everybody 
was contacted with this same letter and invited to come to a meeting where we had at City Hall, 
and— 
 
Councilor Truitt said was WLSC there? 
 
City Engineer Buck said no. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 18 of 24 

 

Councilor Truitt said okay. 
 
City Engineer Buck said discussed the timeline, and really, in my opinion, they’re not being 
impacted, other than cleaning up this right-of-way situation.  If you went out there today and 
guessed where the right-of-way is, you’d say the back of the sidewalk, and it’s basically what 
we’re asking for.  There is no proposed change to their driveways, unless they would like that.  
We did meet with them and say, “If that is a good thing for you to do now, we could make that 
part of our project,” 
 
Councilor Truitt said right. 
 
City Engineer Buck said “but if you don’t know, we’ll build them back where they are now.”  And 
that’s our intent, to replace the torn-up curb that’s in front of that property and replace the 
sidewalk when we do this phase of Salisbury. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and so, Dave [City Engineer Buck], you don’t know what their 
mechanism of reporting back.  The school board has an appointment to the Traffic Commission, 
but you don’t know whether that person reports back to—? 
 
City Engineer Buck said I’m sure that’s done.  It’s been wonderful having somebody regularly at 
the Traffic Commission meetings to be able to provide input about how the school zones 
operate, how the buses come in, how parents drop off, and be able to go back and talk about 
the principals or whomever may be the most important or most logical person for that 
information to be shared with and go from there.  It’s been great, and it’s really been helping, 
you know, open up communication lines.  We hadn’t had anybody attend, at least in my time in 
the City before Désirée [Lord, Facilities Director, West Lafayette School Corporation], so I don’t 
want to get— 
 
Councilor Truitt said right. 
 
City Engineer Buck said in a disagreement, but— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said probably— 
 
Councilor Truitt said no, I know that’s right. 
 
Councilor Satterly said not since Larry Reed [former Facilities Director, West Lafayette School 
Corporation] left. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said when she comes, she’s always well informed. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said so that’s a good [unintelligible] first communication. 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Councilor Hunt said actually, there was a problem down at the base of Ravinia by where the 
Robinsons live, where Northridge— 
 
Councilor Truitt said by Forest Hill and— 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 19 of 24 

 

Councilor Hunt said and so a mother was going to come but she didn’t.  but, you know, I 
presented the issue that we had a problem with school buses there and little kids get off, little 
kids from Cumberland get off about the same six or seven minutes, kids are driving home from 
the high school.  They were very responsive, the police hung around last year and they hung 
around this year.  Although one of the officers told me this year when he stops that it’s mostly 
parents that he’s stopped for going too fast.  So in that respect, they were very responsive, 
because [Deputy Police Chief] John Walker comes.  And it was very helpful, instead of “What do 
we do now?” 
 
►Councilor Truitt said the other thing, for the other Dave [Public Works Director Downey] is 
another one that I was not aware of, was this IDEM situation.  Can you just give me the 30,000-
foot view of this Agreed Judgment?  Or maybe Bob [City Attorney Bauman] or someone, just so 
I have some knowledge. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said I think I can.  We submitted originally back in the mid-90s the Long-
Term Control Plan for CSO reduction. 
 
Councilor Truitt said right. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said and IDEM never responded to that.  And then we’ve submitted a 
couple of updates on it.  And finally this year, EPA got on IDEM about they hadn’t done 
anything.  And so they are being required by the EPA to formalize those Long-Term Control 
Plans throughout the State. 
 
Councilor Truitt said okay. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said and that either happens one of two ways.  It happens either in the 
permit, if all the work will be done within the term of the permit.  In our case, all the work 
wouldn’t necessarily be done within the term of the permit, because of the coordination between 
231 and the Western Interceptor. 
 
Councilor Truitt said okay. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said so they’ve done it by what’s called an Agreed Judgment.  It’s the 
same thing that Lafayette’s also entered into— 
 
Councilor Truitt said so they went through— 
 
City Attorney Bauman said a couple dozen other— 
 
Councilor Truitt said and cleaned out the complaints of municipalities all over the place then. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said well— 
 
Mayor Mills said it’s their process to put in place end Long-Term Control Plans. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said well, let me give them a little more credit than that.  They actually 
went out and met with communities, and at the time when they formally filed the complaint, 
they’d already had— 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 20 of 24 

 

Councilor Truitt said wrapped the Agreed Judgment— 
 
City Attorney Bauman said yes, with— 
 
Councilor Truitt said gotcha.  Okay. 
 
Mayor Mills said we met with them earlier in the summer. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said let me tell you something.  We fought that pretty hard.  And 
even though they wanted that at the last minute, so to speak, in my mind, we hung tight to our 
guns, and we didn’t give away any more than what we committed to back in 1992 for the Long-
Term Control Plan to reduce or remove Combined Sewer Overflows to the river.  We didn’t give 
away anything.  We’re still stuck with the Western Interceptor, no more than that.  And then 
once we complete that, we were required to evaluate that and see what it does, as far as 
reducing or eliminating our CSOs to the river.  And so we haven’t committed to any more than 
what we’ve been doing, since we submitted the plan in 1992.   
 
Mayor Mills said you make that sound like a negative, and it’s a positive. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said they wanted us to submit to completely shutting off our four 
CSOs.  Completely.  Without any—‘We don’t care, just shut them off.”  We did not.  We’ve still 
got the door open a little wide.  I’ll tell you it’s a tough fight.   
 
Councilor Truitt said sure. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said and several times when you’ve talked to us about the CSO things, 
you have mentioned that the plan was submitted to IDEM and that it had not been approved. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said correct. 
 
Councilor McMullin said you have mentioned that. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said just to give you a little help here—I’m always prepared—the 
other Mr. Downey [Adam] has to give a talk to a Purdue class at Purdue University.  He did a 
little bit of an overview— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said so you figured we might as well have it, too? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said you should have it, too. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said all right. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said and it talks about the Long-Term Control Plan a little bit, and 
our CSOs.  So read that at your leisure. 
 
Councilor Truitt said great.  Thank you. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said and I have the monthly report here to show you what we’re 
going through. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 21 of 24 

 

Councilor Truitt said what?  You’re not going to be here Monday? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said yes, I’ll be here. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said we always have this in our mail boxes ahead of time. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said I always give it to you early, so you can ask questions.  Part 
of your NPDES permit is to make sure that every lift station has a backup power plant, so that if 
the electricity goes out, we can keep on pumping so you can keep on flushing.  You can use 
that.  Barbarry Lift Station—and I apologize, that’s gone on a couple months longer than it 
needs to, but I’m working with contractors and they’re tough—but that is up and running.  It ran 
for 24 hours last night.  But the important part I want to show you there is that contract was 
roughly $891,000.  And we’ve already received $490,000 in reimbursement from the EPA grant.  
Green Meadows is ready to be bid in December, and that will be partially reimbursed by that 
same EPA grant.  So you’re coming out in pretty good shape there. 
 
►Public Works Director Downey said I wanted to show you that the leaf schedule—nobody 
seems to follow it.  It is on the website.  I’ve got a copy of it for you. 
 
Councilor Satterly said some of the leaves aren’t down yet, Dave [Public Works Director 
Downey]. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said well, talk to the trees.  I don’t know what to do.  I didn’t put 
in for a contract to get a leaf shaker.   
 
►Public Works Director Downey said and we do have our new truck.  There’s a picture of it in 
there.  That went into service last month. 
 
►Public Works Director Downey said okay.  Western Interceptor, which is what you just talked 
about, okay.  Phase II, Atlas is digging.  Well, maybe they’re digging.  Atlas is digging, if I can 
find north [on the diagram], Phase II goes from approximately the soccer fields down to Dexter 
Road at the bottom, close to the airport.  We’ve already got it in from Windsor and Northwestern 
over to the soccer fields.  And we have it from Blackbird Pond down to the soccer fields.  So the 
next section, which we should be digging in the next day or two, will go down through there.  
Purdue has put a lot of stipulations on us.  In case you hear some wild rumors, they are making 
me replace, for every inch of caliper tree that I take out, I have to put back.  So if I’ve got 2,189 
inches of trees, that’s how many inches I’ve got to put back.  But, they did let me off the hook.  
The only section I have to do that is is basically Station 39 down to Station 37.  Can everybody 
see that?  And the reason for that is that this red line going through here is the State highway.  
And they’ll be taking out a whole bunch of trees.  But that little section there, from 39 down to 
37, the State highway will not be there, so they’re making me replace those trees.  I’m going to 
do my darnedest not to take out some of those 37- and 54-inch oaks that are in there.  I took 
five men, and arm-in-arm, we walked that.  It’s about 900 feet and about 125 feet wide.  And we 
walked through that brush arm-in-arm, and we counted all the trees— 
 
Councilor Truitt said that site is very— just thinking about that— 
 
Public Works Director Downey said in the woods. 
 
[overtalking] 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 22 of 24 

 

 
Councilor Satterly said just north of First Methodist Church there? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said yes. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said did you get any venison? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said no.  But I found a deer.  And I’ve already had the church 
down here in the corner, down here by Newman Road, they’ve already called me this morning, 
wanting to hook on.  I said, it won’t be in operation until at least 2012.  You can’t hook on yet. 
 
Councilor Satterly said tell us about the sewage that was put in the new sewer bulk head. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said Purdue University has a lift station that comes from the 
tennis facility, and they pump up to the corner of McCormick and Cherry Lane.  That 
malfunctioned, and so they called in somebody to fix that, and they took—I don’t know how 
many gallons—but they pumped it in to the new sewer line which isn’t connected to anything. 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Councilor Hunt said I drove by the other day and I— 
 
Public Works Director Downey said Ann [Councilor Hunt] wanted to know what that truck was 
there.  I said well, it’s pumping.  That brings you up-to-date on the Western Interceptor.  And we 
hope desperately to get from Dexter Lane down to the sewer plant by 2012.   
 
Councilor Hunt said David, can you tell me again the date— 
 
Public Works Director Downey said that’s your agreed judgment.   
 
 Councilor Hunt said when did we submit our plan?  In 1992? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said I think it’s ’92. 
 
Councilor Hunt said and IDEM essentially never got back to us? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said they had me under an agreed judgment to turn that in.  And 
also, your NPDES permit every year, make sure that you have that on file. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said they didn’t respond.  They had no comments or anything until this 
year. 
 
Mayor Mills said last year there was one community in the State that had an approved Long-
Term Control Plan.  One. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said one. 
 
Councilor Hunt said that’s 15 years.  That’s a long time. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 23 of 24 

 

Mayor Mills said that’s why EPA Region V out of Chicago was breathing down IDEM’s neck and 
said to IDEM, “You either do this for all the communities, or you’re fined.”  And so— 
 
Public Works Director Downey said they wanted a strong-arm mechanism, which would be in 
the courts. 
 
►Councilor Truitt said all right, and then two just quick—Good Neighbor update.  Where do we 
stand? 
 
Mayor Mills said we’ve just received a new batch of comments from PSG.  We just haven’t 
worked on it recently.  Before the end of the year, we need to put out a revised version and get 
final comments and bring them to the Council. 
 
Councilor Truitt said and so are we planning on doing that next month? 
 
Mayor Mills said good with me.  We just have to sit down.  We have to make time to sit down 
and add those changes and then post it, so people have another chance to look.   
 
►Councilor Truitt said and then I noticed in reading in the Board of Works that insurance 
premiums are signed, sealed, and delivered?  Right?  Gil [Councilor Satterly] signed it. 
 
Councilor Satterly said I guess. 
 
Councilor Truitt said these premiums are—this is the City premiums here.  What happens with 
the—?  It’s more compared to last year.  What have we done to mitigate that increase?  We 
talked about employees paying more of a share. 
 
Mayor Mills said well, they are. 
 
Councilor Truitt said what?  Can you just talk about that, really quick. 
 
Mayor Mills said I’d have to dig out the numbers.  I can do that for Monday night.  I can’t 
remember, but we made new plans and we asked the employees to pick up a bigger portion— 
 
Councilor Truitt said so you will bring that Monday? 
 
Mayor Mills said I will, certainly. 
 
Councilor Hunt said I might say that I got my Medicare notice—not a lot of people here are on 
Medicare— 
 
Councilor Satterly said basically, Medicare premiums are going up. 
 
Councilor Hunt said I think it was about $102, and it’s going up to $122.  So that’s like a 20% 
increase.  And that’s only half of my insurance.  I still have my Purdue insurance, too. 
 
Councilor Truitt said you don’t want to hear insurance price. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said where do you want to talk about that on Monday night?  Under 
Personnel? 



PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES, NOVEMBER 1, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 

 
page 24 of 24 

 

 
Councilor Truitt said yes, that’d be great. 
 
►Councilor Truitt said and I had a Weida update, but I don’t feel like it.  Unless somebody else 
wants it, but I don’t. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said what do you mean? 
 
Councilor Truitt said just where we stand on that whole thing.  I saw the Bowden email, I 
appreciate that, finally emailed.  But it’s just kind of— 
 
City Attorney Bauman said I’m sorry, you said you wanted— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said because he wanted [unintelligible]. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said a Weida update?  Yes, the reporting in the paper, I have no idea 
where they got that.  The judge gave each side three weeks to submit proposed findings. 
 
Councilor Truitt said okay.  Then— 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said so it will probably be at least that long then, because of the 
judgment. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said yes. 
 
Councilor Truitt said I know I was confused, reading that. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said so was I. 
 
Councilor O'Callaghan said that was a staff report.  That’s because Joe Gerrety left. 
 
[overtalking] 
 
City Attorney Bauman said that’s where that is. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business at this time, Councilor Truitt moved for adjournment.  Motion 
was seconded by Councilor O’Callaghan and passed by voice vote, the time being 5:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Judith C. Rhodes, Clerk-Treasurer 
Secretary of the Common Council  


